REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Agencies may occasionally want to consider using a “Request for Information” process to obtain preliminary information about a market or the type of available supply or service when there is not enough information readily available to write an adequate specification or work statement.  A Request for Information is simply a document used to informally solicit this type of information. It may not be used as a source selection method to procure a supply or service. 

See section 18-4-221, MCA, and ARM 2.5.508.
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PO Box 201800 1515 East 6th Avenue Helena, MT  59620   (406) 444-3115

January 29, 2015
To:
All Interested Vendors

Re:
Request for Information

The Montana State Library (The State) is requesting information regarding digital content management systems. This may be software to create and store metadata records and upload digitized content to a shared, centrally hosted online environment, a user interface within a shared website for end users to access the content, a dark archive option for long term preservation of digital files, technical support and marketing materials. The State invites all interested parties to submit a written response to this Request for Information (RFI).

This RFI is being issued strictly for the purpose of gaining knowledge of services and supplies available with an estimate of their corresponding costs and should not be construed as intent, commitment, or promise to acquire services, supplies, or solutions offered.  No contract will result from any response to this RFI.
Information submitted in response to this RFI will become the property of the State of Montana.

The State of Montana will not pay for any information herein requested nor is it liable for any cost incurred by the vendor.

RFI responses must be received prior to March 13, 2015. 
Procedural, administrative, or contractual questions and answers may be directed to the procurement officer listed above. 
Technical or requirement questions may be directed to:
Jennifer Birnel

Montana Memory Project Director

Montana State Library

PO Box 74 

Choteau, MT 59422

(406) 438-2041

jbirnel@mt.gov
We appreciate your response to this request. 
1.0 PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES
1.1 The purpose of this process is to determine what current industry options are available for providing a statewide digital content software solution with a centrally hosted environment, easily accessible to end users, which may also include options for long term preservation of master digital files.
1.2 The objectives of this project include

1.2.1 Provide a cost effective hosted storage service for digital content that can be accessed and made available online.
1.2.2 Hosted storage services should include
1.2.2.1 Ability for multiple users to upload content from many locations.
1.2.2.2 Allow for the addition of customizable item level and page level  metadata, preferably Qualified Dublin Core
1.2.2.3 Support the creation and maintenance of controlled vocabularies for specific metadata fields. 

1.2.2.4 Allow for batch loading of content
1.2.2.5 Allow content to be divided into collections and sub-collections
1.2.2.6 Allow for loading of multi-page objects and/or complex items consisting of one or more file types (e.g. photo (.jpg) and sound file (.mp3), in addition to single page items.
1.2.2.7 Ability to create Optical Character Recognition (OCR) files.

1.2.2.8 Ability to include OCR and other transcripts with images.
1.2.2.9 Ability to edit content and metadata after it has been uploaded to both single items and entire collections as needed.
1.2.2.10 Allow for OAI harvesting
1.2.2.11 Ability to provide usage reports
1.2.2.12 Allow for administrative and management permissions for specified users

1.2.3 Provide a cost effective content management system for delivering digital text, image, audio, and video content on the Internet.
1.2.4 Content Management system should include
1.2.4.1 Ability to brand and create custom webpages 
1.2.4.2 Ability to brand and create individual webpages for each collection and/or institution (which may include multiple collections).

1.2.4.3 Web pages need to be mobile device responsive

1.2.4.4 Web page should be accessible by all types of users and be ADA compliant.
1.2.4.5 Service provides a means to search content through metadata and full-text searches.
1.2.4.6  Provide robust searching capabilities including advanced search options and the ability to limit searches by facets.
1.2.4.7 Digital images are displayed in high quality format with the ability to zoom and pan without losing quality.
1.2.4.8 Ability to flip through pages of a multi-page object

1.2.4.9 Ability to provide usage reports
1.2.4.10 Ability to download images, with multiple options for downloads (i.e. file size, file format, etc.)
1.2.5 Provide a secure storage environment for long term preservation of master files and digital originals.
1.2.6 Long term or “dark archive” preservation services should include
1.2.6.1 Secure storage environment for long term preservation of master files and digital originals.
1.2.6.2 Fixity checks and file updates
1.2.6.3 Ability to access and retrieve files and digital originals
1.2.6.4 Provide backup redundancies using industry standard procedures
1.3 The specifications and requirements listed in this RFI will be used as a basis for making comparisons of similar services from other interested parties.
1.4 Responses to this RFI will be reviewed by a committee representing the Montana State Library, the Montana Historical Society Research Center, the Montana State Library Network Advisory Council and the Montana Memory Project Advisory Council for purposes of learning about digital content software, hosting services, end user access, and long term preservation and archiving options currently available in the industry.
2.0 PROJECT DESCRIPTION
2.1 The Montana Memory Project (MMP) is a program of the Montana State Library and is made available in partnership with the Montana Historical Society to libraries, museums, archives and other entities across the state.  
2.2 The MMP makes available to contributing institutions software to create metadata records and upload digitized content to a shared, centrally hosted online environment, a user interface within a shared website for end users to access the content, a dark archive option for long term preservation of files, technical support, marketing materials. 
2.2.1 This program provides access to digital collections and items relating to Montana’s cultural heritage and government. 
2.2.2 These collections and items document the Montana experience. Many of these items are digitized copies of historic material, some items are contemporary. 
2.2.3 Currently, forty libraries, museums, and archives have contributed 84 collections to be part of the MMP.  These collections include audio files, photographs, diaries, journals, maps, documents, books, yearbooks, and newspapers.  
2.2.4 There are over 42,000 items in the collections and nearly 800,000 pages of content.
2.2.5  Another 17 collections are currently being curated, and of these new collections 6 are from first-time contributors. 
2.2.6 We anticipate the number of collections to continue to grow. The State Library is committed to continuing to offer annual funding assistance to institutions interested in adding materials to the MMP. 
3.0 Terms and Conditions
3.1 The State of Montana will not become obligated as a result of this RFI.

3.2 Information submitted in response to this RFI will become the property of the State of Montana.
3.3 Information that is confidential or trade secret must be clearly marked and separated from the rest of the response.  The response must not contain confidential material in the cost or price section.  An affidavit from a vendor’s legal counsel attesting to and explaining the validity of the trade secret claim as set out in Title 30, chapter 14, part 4, MCA, should be attached to each response containing trade secrets.  Counsel must use the State of Montana “Affidavit for Trade Secret Confidentiality” form in requesting the trade secret claim.  This affidavit form is available on the General Services Division’s website at:  http://www/mt.gov/doa/gsd/procurement/forms.asp or by calling (406) 444-2575.

Any information separated out under this process will be available for review only by our strategic planning team, and limited other designees.  Vendors must be prepared to pay all legal cost and fees associated with defending a claim for confidentiality in the event of a “right to know” (open records) request from another party.

3.4 The State of Montana will not pay for any information herein requested nor is it liable for any cost incurred by the vendor.

3.5  Economy of presentation:  Special binders, colored displays, promotional materials, and the like are not required.

3.6 Vendors may be asked to meet for the purpose of explaining and/or demonstrating responses.  Any meeting, if necessary, will be held via GoToMeeting Software.  List a contact person and phone number the State may contact to schedule a meeting time and place.

3.7  This RFI is being submitted strictly for the purpose of gaining knowledge of the products and services available.
4.0 RFI RESPONSE INSTRUCTIONS
The State is asking all interested parties to submit a response containing the following information:
· Your interest in providing the services/supplies.

· Brief description of past experience providing similar services/supplies.

· From your past experience, has the State identified all the major components necessary to complete this project? If not, please provide information on other necessary components.

· Please provide a list of potential problems/risks that the State may encounter during this project. Please provide any ideas or suggestions about how such problems/risks should be addressed in a solicitation.

· Your best estimated price range to provide the services/supplies as stated herein, lowest estimate to highest estimate.

· Your best estimated time frame for completing the project.
Please do the following:
4.1 Describe how your company provides a cost effective hosting storage service for digital content that can be accessed and made available online. Responses should address the following questions:

4.1.1 Can multiple users upload content from any location?

4.1.2 Can item level and page level metadata be added to records? Is Qualified Dublin Core included as a metadata option? What metadata schemas are utilized?
4.1.3 Is batch loading of content available?
4.1.4 Can content to be divided into collections and sub-collections?
4.1.5 Can multi-page/complex objects and single page items be added to collections?
4.1.6 Can OCR and other transcripts be included with images? Can OCR be created?
4.1.7 Can content and metadata be edited after it has been uploaded?
4.1.8 Is the content available for OAI harvesting?
4.1.9 Can the software provide usage reports?
4.1.10 Can Administrative and management roles be assigned to specific users?
4.1.11  Please list all the file types supported by the software.  
4.1.12 If your software supports audio and visual file formats do the end users need to download files for playback or can they be played inline?
4.2 Describe how your company provides a cost effective content management system for delivering digital text and image content on the Internet.
4.2.1 Can custom webpages be created? Can webpages be created for each collection and/or all collections for each contributing institution?
4.2.2 Are web pages mobile device responsive?
4.2.3 Can web pages be accessed by all types of users, including low-vision, blind, and hearing impaired? If available, please provide a Voluntary Product Accessibility Template (VPAT) that describes how your company’s CMS is Section 508-compliant.
4.2.4 Please describe the search capabilities of your product.

4.2.5 Can searches be conducted through metadata and full-text searches?
4.2.6 Can searching can be limited by facets?
4.2.7 Can digital images be displayed in high quality format with the ability to zoom and pan without losing quality?
4.2.8 Can users flip through pages of a multi-page object?
4.2.9 Can user download the digital content?  Describe the options available for downloading.

4.2.10 Can users interact with the digital content (i.e. share via social media, leave comments, etc.)?

4.2.11 Can the web pages provide usage reports or can Google Analytics be applied to the pages for this purpose?
4.3 Describe secure storage for long term preservation of digital items.
4.3.1 Does your company provide long term preservation of digital files?
4.3.2 If so, are regular fixity checks ran and files updated regularly?
4.3.3 Can preservation files be accessed and retrieved by the contributor and are there costs associated with retrieving these files?
4.3.4 Describe the redundancies in place for long term storage of digital files.
5.0 Vendor Customer References
5.1 Provide references that are using your specific software solution and/or hosted services. At a minimum provide the name of the entity, contact person, customer’s telephone number, email address and a description whether the customer is hosting your software solution in their own environment and/or your hosted services.

6.0 Vendor Pricing for Services Required
6.1 Please provide the pricing for each of the services referenced in your response to Section 4, above. This pricing should include the monthly recurring charges, any non-recurring charges, and any maintenance costs, and upgrade costs.  

6.2 This pricing should also include hourly rates for customization and prerequisite software and hardware pricing.
